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N ‘ _ _ Renaissance Cagital Limited
Strategic Report '

The Directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2018.
1 Results

Renaissance Capital Limited (the “Company" or “RCL"), together with its subsidiaries, has made a consolidated net loss for the
year of US$1,893,000 (2017: net profit of US$2,185,000).

This reduction in profit was targely driven by a decrease in investment banking activity as well as losses in the Company’s
subsidiaries.

Principal activity and review of the business and future developments

Renaissance Capital Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in England and Wales, authorised and regulated by the
Financia! Conduct Authority (FCA) as an investment firm in the United Kingdom, and is passported throughout the European
Union.

The Company fransacts with mainly UK and European institutional investor clients, providing research, sales and execution
services in equity and fixed income securities in UK, Russian, Turkish, Middle East and Narth African, Sub-Sahara African, South
African and other frontier markets. The Company primarily executes trades on an agency basis, hence eaming fees and
commissions rather than trading profits.

The Company also introduces dlients to its affiliates, being fellow subsidiaries of Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited (the
largest and smallest gioup preparing consclidated financial statements in accordance with [FRS) (°Renaissance Capital Group®),
to fill client orders and execute trades in those markets. This is conducted on an agency basis. The Company eams a cost-plus
return for its sales and distribution and trading activities according to a transfer pricing agreement with Group companies.

The Company also provides investment banking advisory services in equity capital markets and debt capital markets to its
corporate clients. The Company participates in a revenue sharing arrangement with Group companies under the transfer pricing
agreement for its investment banking business.

During 2018, a subsidiary, Renaissance Capital Menkul Degerer A.S. in Turkey continued its liquidation pracess. Protracted
legal action involving former employees prevented completion of the liquidation during 2018. The carrying value was written
down by US$10,000 in 2018 to US$ 308,000 (2017: US$ 318,000) which reflects the Directors' expectation of the net realisable
value up to the targeted final liquidation some time in 2019.

During the year, the Company’s other subsidiary, Renaissance Capital Dubai Limited "RCDL") ceased trading and filed a
notification to withdraw its regulatory license from the Dubal Financial Services Autharity (OFSA"). The DFSA subsequently
issued a Notice of Withdrawal of Licence of RCDL on 29 November 2018 and the subsidiary began liquidation praceedings. The
canying value was written down to US$380,000 which reflects the Directors’ expectation of the net realisable value and resulted
tn an impairment loss of US$1,180,000 (2017: US$ 1,772,000). The liquidation of the company was eventually completed on 18
March 2019 and a final distribution received by the Company of US$ 375,000.

The Board continues to invest where it sees the opportunity for profitable growth, with hires in the Investment Banking division,
Equities trading, Fixed Income Sales and Trading teams as well as senior hires in Legal and Compliance.

RCL continues to maintain a strong balance sheet. The liquidity of the Company continues to be strong with 25% (2017: 35%) of
total assets held in cash and US Treasury Bills and 39% (2017: 47%) in cash, cash collateral and US Treasury Bills.

Renaissance Capital Services Limited ("RCSL” or “Services Company”), a UK unregulated entity, opsrates as a services entity
for the Company. The Company remunerates the Services Company on a cost-plus arrangement for services provided.



Renaissance Capital Limited

As a CRD IV regutated Institution, the Company is subject to the Country by Country Reporting requirements, under which it is

required to publish the following information:
a) The name, nature of activities and geographical location of the institution and any subsidiaries and branches;
b) Tumover;

c) The average number of employees on a full time equivalent basis;

d) Profit or loss before tax;
e) Corporation tax paid; and
f) Public subsidies received.

Accordingly, the disclosures are set out below:

o United Kingdom
Entity name Renaissance Capital Limited
Nature of activities Investment business
Operating income US$24,494,000
Average number of employees 56
Profit/(loss) before tax US$(1,884,000)
Corporation tax paid -
Public subsidies received -
United Arab Emirates

Entlty name Renaissance Capital Dubal Limited
Nature of activities In Bquidation
Operating income US$398,000
Avarage number of employees 4
Profit/(toss) before tax US$(1,002,104)
Corporation tax paid -
Public subsidies received .
Turkey

Entity name Renaissance Capital Menkul Degerter A.S
Nature of activities In Equidation
Operating income (15)
Average number of employees -
Profit/(loss) before tax (125)
Corporation tax paid -
Pubfic subsidies received -

Key Performance Indicators

We measure the achievement of our cbjectives using qualitative assessments and through the monitoring of quantitative
indicators termed key performance indicators (KPis). In line with our operating objectives, the profit before tax, regulatory capital
and liquidity is monitored on a regular basis. Regulatory capital is defined as capital required to cover credit, market and
operational risks. Regulatory capital is also monitored as part of the Company’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Plan
(ICAAP).

(in thousands of USD) 2018 2017
Profi(Loss) beforo tax ' US$(1,893) US$2,195
Capital ratio 89% 67%

The Company continues to be supported by the Group. The Directors expect the Company to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and have therefore used the going concem basis in preparing the Financial Statements.




Renaissance Capital Limited
Principal risks and uncertainties - R

As a consequence of its activities, the Company is exposed to market, credit, operational and liquidity risk.

Market risk exposure arises mainly from positions held in equity instruments listed on the Turkish Stock Exchange and from
foreign exchange exposures. The market risk is limited due to the low intemal limits for the Company’s positions and foreign
exchange exposure.

Credit risk, primarily in the form of counterparty seittement risk, arises from transactions in financial instruments with both
regulated market participants and Group companies. It also arises from reverse repo transactions and other receivables from
Group companies.

Operationat risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate or failed intemat processes, human behaviour and systems or from
external events. The Company undertakes a rigorous programme of monitoring and assessing operational risk incidents.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normat and
stressed circumstances. To limit this risk, the Directors of the Company have established an overall liquidity and funding
framework.

The principal rigsks are further explained in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and authorised and approved for issue on 28 May 2019.

J Lewin

Director

28 May 2019
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Directors’ Report
The Directors submt their Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

1 Directors and their interests

The Directors who held office during the year and subsequent to 31 December 2018 were as follows:

A Simone

H Main (resigned 29 March 2018)

M Reed

J Lewin (appointed 21 February 2018)
P Gough (Non-Executive) (resigned 30 April 2018)

N Fagan (nee Semakova) has acted as Company Secretary during the year.

None of the Directors had any interests in the shares of the Company or any other companies which are required to be notified
to the Company or disclosed under the Companies Act 2006.

During the year, Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited paid a premium for a contract insuring the Directors and officers of the
Company, its subsidiaries and controlled entities against personal liabilities which may arise in the course of the performance of
their duties, as well as protecting the Company itself to the extent that it is obligated to its Directors and officers for such liability.

2 Dividends and Charitable Contributions

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2017:US$NIL). During the year, the Company made no
charitable donations (2017: USSNIL), however the Services Company has recharged its charitable donations of US$1,000 (2017:
US$1,000) to the company as part of its management fee.

3 Future developments

On 29 March 2017 the UK triggered Article 50 of the Treaty of Lisbon and so started the formal process to leave the European
Union ("Brexit”). Market volatility lead by uncertainty as a result of Brexit continued throughout 2018 and seems set to remain for
most of 2019. The impact on the Company has been relatively minor with no direct loss of business in 2018. Brexit has not and
is not expected to represent a change to principal risks affecting the future performance and position of the business with no
matters that warrant adjustment of the financial results as at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of signature of these Financial
Statements.

4 Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report, the Directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that iaw the Directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union (EU) and applicable law. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company
for that period.
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In preparing these financiai statements, the Directors are required to: '
« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company and
group will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enabie them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companias Act 2008. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for teking reasonablec steps for the prevention and detoction of fraud and other irregularities.

5 Disclosure of information to auditors

At the date of the Board of Directors' approval of this Revised Report and Revised Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 each of the Directors has confinmed that:

¢  as far as they are aware, there was no refevant audit informafion of which the auditors were unaware; and
+ theyhave taken all the steps necessary as Directors in order to make themseives aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the auditors have been made aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 (2) of the Companies Act
2006.

6 Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint BDO LLP as the Company’s auditor will be put to the shareho!ders at the Annual General Meeting.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

J Lewin

Director

28 May 2018
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Independent Auditor's Report to Members of Renaissance Capital
Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Renaissance Capital Limited ("the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of financial
position, Statement of changes in equity, Statement of cash flows, Consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Consolidated statement of financial position, Consolidated statement of changes in equity and Consolidated statement of cash
flows, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law International Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union

In our opinion:

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at
31 December 2018 and of the Group's loss and the Parent Company’s loss for the year then ended;

+ the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
and

o the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described In the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the finandial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fuffilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concemn
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the {SAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

+ the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

s the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the Group or Parent Company's abifity to continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Directors
report and Strategic Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. :

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of
the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribad by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the Strategic report and Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and '

« the Strategic report and Directors’ report have been prepared in accerdance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report and Director’s report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion;

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or
o certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
¢ we have not received all the infonnativn und explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As expiained more fully in the Statemant of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability
to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

“ accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company ar to cease opsrations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud of error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered materiat if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Financial Reporting Council's
website at: hitps:/iwww fic.org.uk/auditorsresponsibililies. This description fonms part of our auditor’s report.

10
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a bedy, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has been undestaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume respansibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BP0 AP

Leigh Treacy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, UK

28 May 2019

BDO LLP is a limited liability partrership registered in England and Wales (with registered number 0C3056127).

1
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Consolidated Statement of Cdmprehensive Income

The accompanying notes on pages 20 to 50 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

(in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
Note 2018 2017
Operating income -
Net trading (expense)fincome 4 (892) 1386
Fee and commission income 5 26,073 23,641
Interest incomse 6 1,072 845
Interest expense 6 (@4) (127)
Impaimment on financial assets 7 (14) -
Total operating income o 26,005 24,485
" Management fees ' 8 (26,434) " (19,125)
Depreciation 18 27) (30)
Other operating expenses ] (1.761) _ {3,085)
Total operating expenses (28,222) (22,300)
‘Net (loss)/profit before tax 2121 2,185
Income tax 25 234 ' -
Net (lcss)/profit for the year {1,833) 2195
Other comprehensive income '
Unreafised gain on financial assets available-for-sale, net of tax - 1
Foreign cumency transtation on consolidation . (18) (1)
" Total comprehensive (loss)iprofit for the period, net of tax (1.911) 2,185

12



— . _ . Renaissance Cagital Limited

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

(in thousands of USD) ' For the year ended 31 December

' Note 2018 2017
Operating Income ’ ) o '
Neat trading (expense)/income 4 (986) 143
Fee and commission income 5 25,682 22,829
tmpaitment loss 719 (1.214) 1,742)
Interest income 1,056 8t1
Interest expense A 6 44) (127)
Total operating income T ' 24484 21,914
Management fees . 8 (26.434) (19,125)
Other operating expenses ) A 9 ) (278) (337)
Total operating expenses T (26,712) (19,462)
Net (loss)/profit before tax (2,218) 2,452
Income tax 25 234 -
Net (loss}prafit for the year o (1,984) 2,452
Other comprehensive income
Unrealised gain on financial assets available-for-sale, net of tax - 1
Total comprehensive (lossyprofit for the period, net of tax (1,984) 2,463

" The accompanying notes on pages 20 to 50 are an integral part of these Financlal Statements.
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Reaistration Number: 03050237 : . Renaissance Capital Limited
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
Note 2018 R - 114

Assets '

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,683 18,753
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 1 8,211 8,258
Securitiss purchased under agreements to resail 12 - 1217
Receivables 13 13,346 27,159
Loans receivable 14 20,222 17.050
Other assets 15 8,953 5711
Non-current asssts

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 16 4 .
Financial assets available-for-sale 17 - 4
_Propesty and Equipmant 18 - 27
Total assets N ’ o 86419 0 T8AT
Liabitities

Curvent fiabilities

Cash overdrafis 20 183 -
Payables 21 3,726 21,004
Current tax liabilities [ 6
Accrued expenses 2 105 290
Other Gabilities 2 3,936 6,359
Non-current liabilities

Loans payabla 24 10,400 10,400
Total Habilities - ] _ ‘ 18,365 38,059
Equity V ‘

Share capital 2 47,000 47,000
Retained loss (10,187) (8,149)
Fareign exchange transiation 545 563
Other reserves (distributabie) 154 154
Capital redemption reserve 552 552
Total equity attributed to the shareholder , ] o i 38,064 40,120
Total liabllittes and equity ' , 4 56,419 78,178

The Financial Statements on pages 12 to 50 were approved by the Board of Directors, authorised for issue and signed on its
behaff by:

J Lewin

Director

28 May 2019 |
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Registration Number: 03059237 _ _ . Renaissance Cagital Limited

Company Statement of Financial Position

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
Note 2018 2017
Aeoote - — — —_
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 5127 17.787
Financial assets st fair vatue held for trading 11 8.211 8,258
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 12 - 1,217
Receivables 13 13,346 26,898
Loans recelvable 14 19,897 15,850
Other assets - 15 8,781 5.451
Investments in subsidiaries 19 688 1,388
Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 16 4 -
Financial assets available-for-aale ) 17 - 4
Total assets’ ' o o T 58,154 76,863
Liabititles
Current liabliities
Cash overdrafts 20 183 -
Payables 21 3,725 20,950
Accrued expenses 22 85 100
Other liabilities 23 3.924 5437
Non-current liabilities
_Loans payable | - 24 1040 10400
Total liabilities ‘ 18,317 36,887
o — — - -
Share capitat 26 47,000 47,000
Retained loss . (9.715) (7.588)
Other reserves (distributabte) - -
Capital redemption reserve 552 552
Total equity attributed to the shareholder 37,837 39,9668
Total liabilities and equity o N ' 66,164 ' 76,853

The Financia! Statements on pages 12 to 50 were approved by the Board of Directors, authorised for issue and signed on its
behalf by:

J Lewin

Director

28 May 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Renaissance Capital Limited

(in thousands of USD) Forsign
Fair Capltal exchange Other
Share Ratalned Value redomption  transtation reserves
_capital eamings reserve reserve resorve (distributabla) Yotat
Batance at 1 January 2017 47,000 (10,344) (1)} 652 574 154 37,935
Comprehensive income 2,185 1 - (11) - 2,185
Balance at 31 December 2017 _ 47,000 (8,149) . 552 663 "~ 184 40,420
Impact of adopting IFRS 8 - (145) - - - - (145)
Comprehensive income - (1,883) - < (18) - (1.911)
' Balance at 31 December 2018 47,000 (10,187) - 662 646 164 38,064

Capital redemption reserve arose from the repurchase of 2,433,000 shares of £1 each in May 2001 atan exchange rate prevailing

on the date of transaction.

The accompanying notes on pages 20 to 50 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Renaissance ‘Cagital Limited
Company Statement of Changes in Equity

(in thousands of USD) Foreign
Falr Capital exchange
Share Retailned Vatue  redemption translation Other

capital _ eamings reserve resemve resarve. reserves Total
Balance at 1 Januvary 2017 47,000 (10,038) “) 5§52 . - 37,643
Comprehensive income 2,452 1 - - - 2453
Balance at 31 December 2017 47800 _ (7.688) - s62 - - 39,966
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 - (145) - - - - (145)
Comprehensive income - (1.984) - - . - (1,984)
Balance at 31 December 2018 47,000 9,715) . 652 - - 97,837

Capital redemption reserve arose from the repurchase of 2,433,000 shares of £1 each in May 2001 at an exchange rate prevailing
on the date of transaction.

The accompanying notes on pages 20 to 50 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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) ) _ Renaissance Capital Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flbws | ‘

(in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
’ 2018 2017
Note
Cash flows used inffrom operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year (1,.911) 2,195
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
Depreciation 18 27 S0
Income tax expensc/(crodit) 26 (234) .
Interest Income 6 (1.072) (845)
Interest expense 6 44 127
Opening impairment loss under IFRS 9 (145) -
Foreign exchange transiation v o ] ) 18 (1)
Adjusted profititoss) for year (3.273) 1,556
(increase)/decrease In operating assets
Interest received 402 1,054
Income tax from group companies for group relief 24 ‘-
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 47 225
Financial assets at fair valus through profit and loss ‘ @) -
Financial assets available-for-sale 4 -
Securities purchased under agreements to resel} 1,217 (523)
Receivables 13,817 695
Other assats (2.592) .20
increase/ (decrease) In operating liabflities
tnterest paid 1) (132)
Financial liabifities at fair vafue held for trading B (392)
Payables (17,284) 6,081
Accrued expenses (185) 37
Other liabilities A ‘ , (2.423) 2,586
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations (10,081) 8,980
Cash flows used inffrom investing activities ’ : T o
Purchase of property and equipment . - m
 Total cash flows used in investing activities : : T . n
Cash flows used In/ffrom financing sctivities
Loans receivable o (3.172) 2,650
Yotal cash flows {used in)/generated from financing activities (3.172) 2,650
Net change in cash and cash equivalents {13,253) 9,633
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18,753 9,120
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year ’ 10,20 5,500 18,753

The accompanying notes on pages 20 to 50 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Renaissance Cagital Limited

Company Statement of Cash Flows

(in thousands of USD) Note For the year ended 31 December
2018 2017
Cash flows used Infirom operating activitios '
Profit/(foss) for the year (1.984) 2,452
Adjustments for non-cash and other ilems:
income tax expense/(credit) 25 (234) -
Interest income 6 (1,058) 811)
Interest axpense 6 44 127
tmpairment of investments 19 1,200 1,742
Opening impaiment toss under IFRS 9 (145) -
Adjusted (loas)/profit for year (2,175) 3,510
(Increase)/decrease In operating assets
interest received 402 1,020
income tax from group companles for group retief 234 -
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 47 225
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss )
Financial assets available-for-gale 4 .
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1217 523)
Receivables 13,552 89
Other assets (2,675) 4.183)
Increase/ (decrease) In operating llabllittes
Interest paid (44) (132)
Financial liabilities at fair value held for trading - (392)
Payables (17,226) 6.070
Accrued expenses (16) 7
Other Eabllities (1.513) 2,349
Net cash (used In)/generated from operations (8,186) © 8,040
Cash flows used infirom Investing activities ' "
Investment in subsidiaries 19 (500) -
Totat cash flows used in investing activities (500) -
Cash flows used infirom financing activities = :
Loans receivable (4,147) 2,650
Totat cash flows (used In)/gensrated by financing activities (4,147) 2,650
Met change In cash and cash equivatents (12,843) 10,680
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 17.787 7,097
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10 ] 4,844 17,787

The accompanying notes on pages 20 to 50 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements '
1 Organisation

Renaissance Capital Limited (the “Company® or “RCL", and together with its subsidiaries the “Group”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in England and Wales, authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority as an investment firm in the
United Kingdom, and is passparted throughout the European Union. The Company transacts with mainty UK and European
institutional investor clients, providing research, sales and exacution services in equity and fixed income securities in UK, Russian,
Turkish, Middle East and North African, Sub-Sahara African, South African and other frontier markets. The Company also
introduces clients to its affiliates, being fellow subsidiaries of Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited (the largest and smallest
group preparing consalidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS) ("Renaissance Capital Group®), to fill cllent orders
and execute trades in those markets. This is conducted on an agency basis. The Company also provides investment banking
advisory services In equity capital markets and debt capital markets to its corporate ciients. ‘

Renaissance Capital Dubal Limited ("RCDL") and Renaissance Capital Menkul Degerler A.S, the Company’s subsidiaries, are
currently in the process of liquidation.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Consalidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards:
(IFRS) as adopted for use in the European Union. The significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out below.

The Consofidated Financial Statements are prepared undar the historical cost convention, as modified by the application of fair
value measurements to financlal assets held for trading and available for sale and are presented in United States Dollars (US$”
or “USD"), being the Group's functional currency.

The preparation of the Consolidated Finandial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of the
long-term incentive plan ("LTIP").

Basis of consolidation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a consolidated basis as the Company’s subsidiaries are 100% owned by the
Company, and as such RCL has control over them.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

In these financial statements, the Group has applied IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, for the first time. The Company has not adopted
early any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has bsen issused but is not yet effective.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the accounting for financiat
instruments project: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group has adopted IFRS 9, except
for hedge accounting which is not applied by the Group, with a date of transition of 1 January 2018. The Group did not early adopt
any of IFRS 8 in previous periods.

The key changes to the Group's accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised below:
Classification and measurement

Under IFRS 9 financial assets are required to be classified into three measurement categories: those to be measured
subsequently at amortized cost, those to be measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
and those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or toss (FVTPL). Classification of debt Instruments is driven
by the entity’s business madel for managing its financial assets and whether the contractuat cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI). If a debt instrument is held to collect, it may be carried at amortized cost if it also meets the SPP|
requirement. Dabt instruments that meet the SPPI requirement that are held in a portfolio where an entity both holds to collect
assets' cash flows and sell assets may be dassified as FVTOCI. Financial assets that do not contain cash flows that are SPPI
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must be measured at FVTPL. Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from financial assets but will ba included in
assessing the SPPI condition. Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value. However, maragement can
make irevocable election to present changes in fair vafue in other comprehensive income, provided the instrument is not held
for trading. tf the equity instrument is held for trading, changes in fair value are presanted in profit or loss. Most of requirements
in IAS 39 for dassification and measurement of financial liahilities were carried forward unchanged to [FRS 9.

Impairment

IFRS 9introduced a new model for recognition of impairment losses - the expected credit losses (ECL) model. There is a ‘three
stage’ approach which is based on the change in credit quality of financial assets since initial recognition. Entities must calculate
probability of default (PD), losses given default (LGD) and exposures at default (EAD) to estimate security-level expected credit
loss provisioning amounts. In practice, the new rules mean that antitiss will have to record an immediate loss equal to the 12-
month ECL on initial recognition of financial assets that are rot credit impaired (or lifetime ECL for trade receivables). Where
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. The
model includes operational simplifications for lease and trade receivables. The Group applied the simplified approach and
recorded lifetime expected losses on all trade recaivables.

Eflect of transition to IFRS 9

As pemitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 8, the Group elected not to restate comparative figures. Accordingly, the
comparative information for 2017 is reported under IAS 39 and therefore is not comparable to the information presented for 2018.
Differences arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognized directly in the Group’s retained earnings as of 1 January 2018.
There is no impact on other components of the Group’s equity.

On 1 January 2018 the Group pesformed an assessment of the business models within which financial assets are held and an
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial assets are solely payments of principal and interest. The Group
expects to continue measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at fair value through profit or loss. Loans as well as
trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash flows representing solely
payments of principal and interest. The Group analyzed the contractual cash flow characteristics of those instruments and
concluded that they meet the criteria for amortized cost measurement under (FRS 9. The Group has one asset which was
classified as financial assets available-for-sale under IAS 39. On transition to IFRS 9, this has been reclassified to financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The impairment requirements of IFRS 8 are complex and require management judgement, estimates and assumptions. The
Group evaluates impact on its squity from adoption of IFRS 9 impairment requirements and performs detailed analysis which
considers all reasonable and supportable information, including forward-looking elements, to detarmine the extent of the impact.
The assessment process is based on available data and involves development of risk modelling methodologles and forecast
scenarios considering the relative probabilities of each ocutcome. The Group tests the following types of financial assets for
possible impairment: cash and short-term deposits with banks; counterparties’ debt under reverse repo transactions; trade and
other receivables due, including cash batances with brokers; loans receivables. As all the listed assets vary in respect to inherent
credit risk, a distinctive approach for provision calcutation was used for each of them.

The following table shows the closing impairment allowance for financial assets in accordance with IAS 39 as at 31 December
2017 to opening expected credit losses altowances determined in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December Remeasurement At 1 January 2018
2017 under IAS 39 under IFRS 9 under IFRS 9
_ Impaimment allowance for financial assets - .- 145 145

Total ' - . 145 145

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets and amounts of provisions under IAS 38 to the carrying
amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018:

(in thousands aof USD) At 31 December 2017 Remeasurement At t January 2018
Original carrying under IFRS 9 New canrying

amount under IAS 39 amount undsr IFRS

9

Cash and cash equivalents 18,753 (1) 18,752
Receivabies 27,159 (15) 27,144
Loans receivable R o R 17,050 (128) 16,922
Total ' ' ' 62,962 (185 . 62,818
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IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014, and amended in April 2016, and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or servicas to a customer. The new revenue standard supersedes
all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. The Group adopted IFRS 15 with the date of initial application as of 1
January 2018 using modified retrospective approach, which means that comparatives are recalculated only for contracts that
were not completed as at 1 January 2018. Application of IFRS 15 did not result in any material impact on the Group.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and ligbilities within the scope of IFRS 8 are classified based on the business model for menaging the asscts
and the asset's contractual tefms, measured at either amortised cost ar fair value through profit or loss. The Group determines
the dassification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date
where appropriate or permitted. Financial assets and liabilities are recorded at initial recognition at fair value.

Financlal assets and liabilities at fair value held for trading

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value are classified as held for trading if they are acquired or incurred for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. The financlal assets and liabilities at fair value held for trading are measured at fair value.
Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
net trading income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (trade receivables (both third-party and related-party) (Note 13), the Renaissance Capital Group loan
facility (Note 14) and Renaissance Capital Group non-trading receivables (Note 15) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and not acquired for trading. These meet the hold to coffect
business model test and the solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) contractual cash flow characteristics test and are
as such are classified as measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated
by management upon initiat recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under IFRS 9.

Fair vatue of financial instruments

Financial instruments purchased or sold are recorded on a trade date basis. The estimated fair value of financial instruments is
made in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9. Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties on amn’s length conditions, other than in a forced sale
or liquidation. The fair values of assets or liabilities that are actively traded in organised financial markets are determined by
reference to quoted market bid or ask prices, respectively, at the close of business on the reporting date. For assets where there
is no active market, falr value is determined using valuation techniques.

Valuation techniques consider time value and volatility factors of underlying financial instruments as well as other relevant
economic factors. The Group uses industry accepted valuation models for determining the fair value of simple financial
instruments such as oplions or interest rate and currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into models are market-
observable.

The output of a model Is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty and valuation
techniques employed may not fully reflect factors relevant to the positions the Group holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted,
where appropriate, to allow for additional facters including model risks, liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk. Management
believes that these valuation adjustments are necessary and appropriate to fairly state the values of financial instruments carmied
at fair vaiue on the Statement of Financial Position.

In the nommal course of business, the Group may enter into transactions with its related parties. IFRS 9 requires initial recognition
of financial instruments based on their fair values. Judgment is applied in determining if transactions are priced at market or non-
market interest rates, where there is no active market for such transactions. The basis for judgment is pricing for similar types of
transactions with unrelated parties and effective interest rate analysis.
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Cash and cash equivalents -

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and short-term, highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months
or less from the date of acquisition that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash. They are measured at amortised
cosl.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

The Group enters into transactions involving the purchase of securities with a simultaneous agreement to resell (reverse
repurchase agreements) and transactions involving the sale of securities with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
(repurchase agreements). In reverse repurchase agreements, the cash delivered is derecognised and a corresponding
receivable, including accrued interest, is recorded on the Statement of Financial Position, recognising the Group’s right to receive
the cash back. In repurchase agreements, the cash received is recognised on the Statement of Financial Position with a
comresponding obligation, including accrued interest, to retumn it. Interest eamed on reversa repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements is recognised over the life of each agreement using the effective yield method and included
in interest income and expense, respectively.

Securities received under reverse repurchase agreements and securities delivered under repurchase agreements are not,
respectively, recognised on or derecognised from the Statement of Financial Position, unless the risks and rewards of ownership
are obtained or transferred. The market value of the securities recelved or delivered is monitored on a daily basis and additional
collateral is provided or retumed in accordance with the undertying agreements.

The Group offsets reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements with the same counterparty for transactions
covered by legally enforceable master netting agreements when net or simultaneous sefttement is intended.

Receivables from and payables to brokers and dealers

Amounts receivable from and payable to brokers and dealers mainly represent payments receivable and payable on unsettied
securities transactions. The amount of receivables from brokers are recorded on a trade date basis.

Subsidiaries

The Company controls a subsidiary if all three of the following elements are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power to affect those variable retums. Investments in
subsidiaries are held at cost less impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group uses the expected credit losses (ECL) approach for recognition of impainment losses.
From 1 January 2018, the Group has been recording allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, receivables and other
financial assets not held at FVTPL.

The ECL afiowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or
°LTECL"), unless there has been no significant inctease in credit fisk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on
the 12 months’ expected credit loss ("12mECL").

The ECL is calculated using three components: exposures at defauft ("EAD"), losses given default ("LGD") and probability of
defaults ("PD”). PD is an estimate of the likelthood of default over given time horizon. EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a
future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued
interest from missed payments. LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where default occurs at a given time.

IFRS 9 introduces a ‘three stage’ approach which is based on the change in credit quality of financiat assets since initial
recognition;

Stage 1: Financial assets which have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Stage 2: Financial assets that are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Stage 3: Financial assets which are considered to be credit-impaired.

ECL is recognized in profit or loss as impairment loss on financial assets with corresponding ECL aliowance reported as a
decrease in the carrying value of financial assefs measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet.
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The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial
instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. Based on the above process, the Group allocated financial assets
into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3.

As of 31 December 2018, Stage 1 is represented by cash and cash equivalents, securities purchased under agreements to resall
and loans receivable due to the short-term nature of these assets (i.e. less than 12-months). The Group recognises loss aflowance
on these assets based on 12mECL. To estimate the PD, the Group uses credit ratings assigned by extemal rating agencies. PD
is determined based on the rating of a counterparty by reference to the retation between the rating and PD. The LGD is determined
based on the average of historic recovery rates for unfunded liabilities as reported by extemal rating agency, Moody's.

As of 31 December 2018, there are no financial assets that are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, and therefore there are no Stage 2 financial assets.

if the Group determines that a financial asset is credit-impaired based on a qualitative and quantitative assessment, the asset
transferred to Stage 3. A financial asset Is assessed to be in default when internal or extemat information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before considering any credit enhancements hetd by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. As of 31
December 2018, there are no Stage 3 financial assets.

The Group applies the simplified approach and records lifetime expected losses on afl trade receivables. For the majority of
these assets, the Group uses an intemally compiled provision matrix to determine PD.

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing
enforcement activity and (ii) where the Group's recovery method is foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering in full. The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity.

For subsidiaries, the Company also assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an investment may be
impaired. Where no indication of impairment exists, the investment is carried at cost.

Taxation

Income taxes

Income taxes have been provided for in the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the tax legislation enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. The income tax charge comprises
curvent and deferred taxes and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Current tax is the amount expected to
be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable profits or tosses for the current and prior periods. Taxes
other than income taxes are recorded within other operating expenses.

Deferred taxes

Deferred income tax is provided using the fiability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
[iabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the Initial recognition exemption, deferred
taxes are not recorded for temporary differences on initial recognition of an asset or a liahlity in a transaction cther than abusiness
combination if the transaction, when initially recorded, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. Deferred tax balances are
measured at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date which are expected to apply to the period when the
temporary differences will reverse or the tax loss camy forwards will be utilised. Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary
differences and tax loss carry forwards are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductions can be utilised.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction
from the proceeds in equity. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares issued is
recognised as additional paid-in capital.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity at the reporting date only if they are declared before or on the
reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the reporting date or proposed or declared after the
reporting date but before the Consclidated Financial Statements are authorised for issue.
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Operating leases ‘ -

Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as expenses on a straighHine basis over the period of the
lease term and are included in operaling expenses. Provisions are made for cbligations under onerous opereting leases when
the property Is not used by the Group and the net costs of exiting from the leases exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received.

Revenue recognition

The Group earns trading income and fees and commission income from the sales and distribution services it provides net of
value added taxes. The Group adopts the trade date method of accounting for purchase and sale of securities. Advisory fees and
cominissions are recognised upon completion of relevant transactions. If a transaction is split into several phases and the Group's
fees are clearly defined for each phase, revenue is recognised upon satisfactory completion of performance obligation. Advisory
revenues are reported net of transaction associated costs paid or payable to third parties. According to a transfer pricing
agreement with Renaissance Capital Group companies, the Company eams a cost-plus return for its sales and distribution and
trading activities and participates in a revenue sharing arangement with Renaissance Capital Group companies under the
transfer pricing agreement for its investment banking business. Investment banking revenues are not recognised until the
Company has entitlement under the transfer pricing agreement.

Long-term incentive plan

All employees are contracted to the Services Company and seconded back to the Company. As a result, the Company continues
to maintain, albeit indirectly, a compensation policy for its employees designed to fadilitate pay-for-performance and to retain key
employees. The benefits accruing under the policy are based upon employee achievements and the financial performance of the
Company.

Amounts payable under the compensation paficy at the reporting dates have been recognized to the extent that they related to
the reporting pericds and have been fully eamed as of the reporting date. Amounts retated to the deferral part of the LTIP are
recognized in the financial statements as part of accrued salaries and performance related remuneration as these services vest
as detailed below and in Note 8.

The incentive schemes’ bonus structure for the Group includes two elements: direct cash payments and deferred cash payments.

The plans are described below:

a) Cash bonus

Amounts awarded to employees in the form of cash bonus are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in fufl in
the period in which they were granted.

b) Cash deferral Tier 1

Cash Deferral Tier 1 awards granted in any given year are amortised over a specified vesting period (currently 2 years). A portion
of the award is vested and paid out annually, with the unpaid balance bearing interest at Libor plus 2%. Payment is subject to the
employee’s continuous employment and occurs each January following the year in which the deferral has started.

As there are no plan assets as of the reporting date, the liability recognised is equal to the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date, calculated under the Projected Unit Credit Methad. In determining the present vafue of its defined
benefit obligations the Renaissance Capital Group attributes benefit to periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula. The
probability that some payments under the plan may not vest, i.e. that some employees may resign or leave in the future periods
after the reporting date is reflected in the model via the staff tumover ratio. The Renaissance Capital Group adjusts this estimate
annually based on actual data and changes in Management expectation regarding the staff tumovaer.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency at the rate rufing at the date of the transaction. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the functional currency rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of transactions at rates different from those
at the date of the transaction, as well as unrealised foreign exchange differences on unsettied foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange ratas at the date when the fair
value is determined.
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Unrealised exchange differences on non-monetary financial assets (investments in equity instruments) are a component of the
change in their fair value. For a non-monetary financial asset classified as held for trading, unrealissd exchange differences are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. For non-monetary financial assets, which are classified as available-for-
sale, unrealised exchange differences are recorded directly in equity untl the asset is sold or becomes impaired.

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following standards and interpretations have been issued, but are not yet eftective, up to the date of issuance of the
Consdlidated Financial Statements and are expected to impact the Group. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016, replacing IAS 17 Leances, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement cantains a Lease,
SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and S{C-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance shest model similar to the accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The
standard is yet to be endorsed.

The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-
term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liabifity to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease temn (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. IFRS 18 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. Early application is pemmitted, but not before an entity applies [FRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrogpective or a madified retrospective approach.

The Group does not currently have any leases, as all leases are held by the Services Company. As such there will be no direct
impact on the Group's financial statements. However, as the Company remunerates the Services Company on a cost-plus
arrangement for services provided, any impact on the operating expenses of the Services Company will be reflected in the
management fees paid to the Services Company.

3 Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Directors are required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported income, expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Use of available information and
application of judgment are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual resufts in the future could differ from such estimates,
and the differences may be material to the Financial Statements. In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the
Directors have made the following judgments and estimates, which have the most significant effect on the amounts récognised
in the Congolidated Financial Statements. .

Going Concern

The Company’s Directors have made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concem and are satisfied that
the Group and the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group or Company’s abllity to continue as a
going concem. The economic difficulties in Russia and sanctions against some Russian companies are being monitored by
management, with no significant impact on the Group or Company to date. Therefore, the Consolidated Financial Statements
continue to be prepared on the going concem basis.

tmpairment

The impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are complex and require management judgement, estimates and assumptions. The
Group evaluates impact on its equity from adoption of IFRS 9 impairment requirements and performs detafled analysis which
considers all reasonable and supportable information, including forward-tooking elements to determine the extent of the impact.
The assessment process is based on available data and involves development of risk modelling methodologies and forecast
scenarios considering the relative probabilities of each outcome.
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Long-term incentive plan

The Directors apply judgments and estimates to calculate the fair value of the obligations as of the reparting date under the long-
term incentive plan. It is expscted that the tong-term incentive plan will be successful in retaining key employees, and as such
a voluntary aftrition rate of 5% is used in the caiculation. Further information is detafled in Notes 2 and 8.

4 Net trading income

{in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 Dacember
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company

Equities (1.043) (1.037) (14) ()]
Fixed income 23 23 (25) (25)
Foreign currency swaps 220 220 130 130
Foreign exchange revatuation - (192) ) {192) - 45 . 45
Total net trading income (992) ' (886) 136 ] 143

Net trading income for the Group includss foreign exchange losses (excluding foreign exchange on financial instruments) of US$152,000 (2017:
$166,000).

5 Fee and commission income

(in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Advisory fees and commission ' S a 6,905 6,905 7.968 7,986
Brokerage fees and commission 19,168 18,777 15,675 14,863
Total net fee and commission income , 26,073 25,682 . 2364 22,829

8 Interest income and expense

(in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
2018 2017

Group Company Group Company
{ntarest {ncome
Interest Income on reverse repurchase agreements 2 2 2 2
Interest income on bank accounts 26 23 9 5
Interest income on loans to group companies 919 906 746 716
Interest income on bonds ) , 125 125 88 88
Total interest income - 1,072 1,056 845 81
interest expense
Interest expense on repurchase agreements (1g] @ (11) (11)
Interest expense on overdrafts (11) an 4) 4)
Interest expense on loans from group companies (26) (26) (26) (26)
interest expense on bonds ) ; - - (85) (e6)
Total interest expense ' (44) " (44) - (120 (zn
Net interest income 1,028 1,012 718 684
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7 impairmont on financlal assets

{in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group  Company

Impaiment on receivables 14 14 -
Impaimment on loans receivable (28) (28) .- -
Totat impairment on financial asssts ’ (14) (14) - -
(in thousands of USD)

Opening Movement in ECL Closing

balance of batance of

ECL 12.monthECL  Lifetime ECL ECL
Receivables 16 - (14) T2
Loans Receivable 128 28 - 158
" Total ' S o 144 28 (19 168

8 Management fees

(in thouserds of USD) For the ysar endsd 31 Decamber
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company

Satarias 8,264 8,264 6,687 6,064
Other remuneration 9,502 9,502 6.221 6,221
insurance and social security contributions 1,510 1,510 1,085 1,085
Premises expenses 1292 1,292 1,183 1,183
IT expenses 2,688 2,689 1,741 1,741
Travel, entertainment and special events 1,309 1,309 1,156 1,156
Irrecoverabta VAT 592 592 478 478
Other operating expenses 1,276 1,276 574 574
Total managsment fees ' ' 26434 26434 19,125 19,125

The Services Company setties the majority of the Company’s costs and in retumn receives a cost-plus management fee from the
Company for the services provided. Other remuneration largely relates to bonus payments. Other operating expenses of
US$1,276,000 (2017:US$574,000) is largely made up of depreciation of US$319,000 (2017: US$270,000), professional services
of US$366,000 (2017:US$78,000) and marketing and advertising of US$243,000 (2017: US$132,000).

All employees are contracted to the Services Company, RCSL, and seconded back to the Company. As a result, the Company
continues to maintain, albeit indirectly, a compensation palicy for its employees designed to facilitate pay-for-performance and to
retain key employees. The benefils accruing under the policy are based upon employee achievement and the financial
performance of the Group and the Renaissance Capital Group. Amounts payable under the compensation palicy at reporting
dates have been recognised to the extent that they related to the reporting periods and have been fully eamed as of the reporting
date. Performance related remuneration expense is reflected in other remuneration and includes cash bonus granted in 2018
and relevant portions of the cash deferrals granted prior to 2018.

The average monthly number of employees during the year for 2018 reflects the equivalent number of employees seconded to
the Company from the Services Company, as well as employees of RCOL

2018 2017
Administration 16 17
Sales . 44 39

- Average monthly number of employees during the year - 80 56
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Unrecognised LTIP compensation expense

Other remuneration expenses include respectively 2018 anc¢ 2017 LTIP portion accounted according to Note 2. The estimated
amount of LTIP awards granted as of 31 December 2018 which will be recognised in future pesiods is as follows:

Estimated unrecognised LTIP compensation expense:

(in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 Decembar
2018 2017

Group Company ~ Group ~ Company
LTIP awarded in '
Year 2018 - 3,245 2,966
Year 2019 5123 5,123 696 639
Year2020 1,133 1,133 - -
Total unrecognised compensation expense-estimate 6,256 6,256 3,941 - 3,606

At 31 December 2018 employee voluntary turnover for future periods of vesting is estimated to be 5% (2017: 5%) per annum.
The Company makes required social security contributions in accordance with UK legistation on behalf of its employees. These
contributions are expensed as incurred and the Company has no legal or constructive obligation to make any further payment in
respect of such statutory social security and psnsion contributions.

Directors’ remuneration

{in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
. 2018 2017
. . Group Company Group Company
Directors’ remuneration (included in Management fees) 2,854 2,264 2,169 1,497
Highest paid Director ’ ) ) 813 813 672 488

Total compensation for loss of office - - - -

All employee contracts for the Company have been transferred to the Services Company in previous periods, however Directors’
remuneration above reflects the equivalent costs recharged to the Company plus the cost of Non-Executive Directors. It also
includes relevant remuneration for the Directors of RCOL.

There were pension contribution payments of US$4,000 (2017: US$2,000) made by the Group on behalf of the Directors during
the year.

Aggregate compensation for the Directors was as follows:

{In thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Campany
Shart-term benefits 2,385 1,764 1,678 1,497
Long-term benefits 469 501 491 488
Directors’ remuneration (included in staff costs) 2,854 2,264 2,169 1,986

There were no other key management personnel identified by the Group.

9 Other operating expenses

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company

Auditors’ remuneration for

- audit services 83 83 101 72

- CASS audit 13 13 13 13
Other expenses 1.665 181 2,971 252
Total ather oparating expenses ' ' 1,761 278 3,085 337
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The majority of expenses are paid by the Services Company and incdluded in the management fee paid by the Company (see
note 8). Other expenses of US$1,665,000 (2017: US$2,971,000) largely relate to expenses incurred by RCDL and Renaissance
Capital Menkul Degerter A.S.

10 Cash and cash equivalents

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Current accounts with banks ) o 5683 5,127 18,753 17,787
Totat cash and cash equivalents 5,683 5427 18,753 17,787

At 31 December 2018, there was no amount within the closing balance of cash and cash equivalents which was classified as
client money.

11 Financial assets at fair value held for trading

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Trading assets '
Equity instruments - - = -
Dabt instruments ) 8,211 8,211 8,258 8,258
Total trading assets 8,211 8,211 8,268 8,258

The debt instruments at fair vatue held for trading comprise US Treasury bonds and are classified as Leve! 1 under the fair value
hierarchy.

12 Securities purchased under agreements to resell

(in thousands of USD) : At 31 Dacember
2018 2017
. Group Caompany Group Company
Total securities purchased under agreements to rassil - - 1,217 694
Fair value of collateral received . ] - - 1,258 683

These reverse repurchase agreements are collateralised by the counterparties’ equity securities hotdings. The agreements are
carried at the contract amounts reflecting the amounts at which the securities were initially acquired, adjusted for margin calls
and accrued interest.

The Group controls credit risk assodated with these activities by monitoring counterparty credit exposure and collateral values

regularly and requiring additional collateral to be deposited with the Graup when necessary. All reverse repurchase agreements
are denominated in USD. The Group has full rights of use of all collateral received.

13 Receivables

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Customers, clearing broker & central counterparties ' 9,209 9,209 25,565 25,565
Trading receivables due from Renaissance Capital Group companies 4137 4,137 1,584 1,333
Total receivables 13,346 13,346 21,459 26,898

Receivables from customers, dearing broker & central counterparties includes collateral of US$8,028,000 (2017: US$10,010,000)
provided to a2 bank to support the operations of the Group in markets where the Group utilizes the bank as custodian. The
markets include Turkey and other intemationat markets. Receivables balances include an impairment of $2,000 under {FRS 9.
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14 Loans receivable

At 31 December
(in thousands of USD) 2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Loan receivable v o 20,222 19,897 17.050 15,850

Total loans receivable 20,222 19,897 42,050 15,860

The Company provides a loan facility agreement of up to US$25,000,000 to Renaissance Securities (Cyprus) Limited. The foan
is unsecured, matures in 2019 and eams interest at a rate of 4.5% per annum. It is callable with one day notice. Interest is
payable on the scheduled maturity date of 18 December 2019. At 31 December 2018 the outstanding loan balance was
$20,153,000, and the Company has recorded an impairment provision under [FRS 9 of $156,000.

RCDL has provided a short-term loan of $225,000 to Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited. Interest is charged at the rate of
2.5% per annum and the loan was repald in full on 28 February 2019.

15 Other assets

({in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company

Prepayments 171 53 256 46
Amounts dus from Renalssance Capital Group companies 8,016 8,018 5,336 §.336
Interest receivable 698 680 31 26
Other recaivables 68 32 88 43
Total other assets o 8963 8,781 5,714 5451

The 31 December 2018 Renaissance Capital Group balance of US$8,016,000 is non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

16 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

{in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Unquotad equity shares 4 4 - :
Total financial assets at fair vatue through profit and loss Y 4 - ’ i

Unquoted equity shares held as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss consists solsly of shares in SWIFT Scrl, a
member-owned co-operative. These shares have been valued at cost price and revalued at the closing foreign exchange rate,
which is considered to approximate fair value. The financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are classified as Level 3
under the fair value hierarchy.

These assets were previously classified as financial assets available-for-sale, however the introduction of IFRS 8 has removed
this classification and as such they have been reclassified as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

17 Financial assets available-for-sale

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
) Group Company Group Campany
Unquoted equity shares ‘ - - 4 4
Total financial assets avallable for sale - - 4 4

Unquoted equity shares held as financial assets available-for-sale consists solely of shares in SWIFT Scrl, a member-owned co-
operative. In 2018 these have been reclassified as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss to meet the requirements
of IFRS 9 (see note 16 above).
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(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018
Leasehold Fixtures and Computers and Total
improvemsnts fittings  other equipment
Historical cost C o
Batance at 1 January 2018 142 20 149 31t
Disposals / write-offs (142) (20) (149) (311)
__Batance at 31 December 2018 - - - -
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2018 (134) (14) (136) (284)
Depreciation ® ©) (13) @n
Disposals / write-offs 142 20 149 3
Balance at 31 December 2018 - - - -
Net book value at 31 December 2018 - - - -
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017
Leasshold Fixtures and Computers and Total
7 improvements fittings ather equipment
Histoerical cost
Balance at 1 January 2017 142 20 142 304
Additions - - 7 7
Balance at 31 Decembar 2017 142 20 149 A
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2017 (86) (9) (99) (194)
Depreciation (48) (5} (37) (80)
Balance at 31 Dacembar 2017 (134) (14) (136) (284)
Not book value at 31 December 2017 8 6 13 27
The Company has no propernty and equipment, with the above relating solely to RCDL.
19 Investments in subsidiaries
Company Domicile Principal Business Holding
Renaissance Capital Menkut Degerter A.S Turkey Securities trading (under liquidation) 100%

Renaissance Capital Dubal Limited United Arab Emirates Securities trading (under liquidation).  100%

Renaissance Capital Menkul Degerler A.S is cumently under liquidation. In the financial statements of the Company, the
brought forward carrying value was US$318,000. During the year impalmment of US$10,000 (2017: reversal of impairment of
US$30,000) was booked to bring the canying value at 31 December 2018 to US$308,000. This reflects the amount estimated
to be recoverable in 2019 on completion of the liquidation process. The registered address is 19 Mayis Mah.Halaskargazi
Cad.No.172/216, Sigli-Istanbul, Turkey.

Renaissance Capital Dubai Limited is also cumrently under fiquidation. In the financial statements of the Company, the brought
forward carrying value was US$1,070,000. The impairment for the year was US$1,180,000 and (2017: US$1,772,000) and there
was cash of US$500,000 deposited by the Company during the year. The investment is shown in the balance sheet at its impaired
value of US$380,000, being its net asset value at 31 December 2018. The registered address is Office No 202, Level 2 Gate
Village — Building 6, DIFC, PO Box 608925, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.



Renaissance Capital Limited
20 Cash overdrafts

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
08 2017
.. Group Company Group Company
' Current accounts with banks , , ' A 183 183 - -
Totat cash and cash equivaients 183 183 . -

21 Payables

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
» . Group Company Group Company
Customers, clearing broker & central counterparties ‘ 2,495 2,485 2,646 2,645
~ Trading payables due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 1230 1,230 18,358 18,306
Total payables ' A 3,728 3,725 21,004 20,850

22 Accrued expenses

(in thousands of USD) At 31 Dscember
2016 2047
] ) Group Company Group Caompany
Other accrued expenses B 105 85 290 100
Total accrued expenses .. 105 85 280 100
23 Other tiabilities
(in thousands of USD) At 31 Decembor
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 3.021 3,021 5,814 5434
Other payables 12 - 542 -
VAT and cther taxes payable, excluding income taxes 3 3 3 3
Total other Gabifittes . ‘ ' 3,938 3,924 6,359 5,437

The batance at 31 December 2018 primarily comprises salaries, performance related remuneration and other operating costs
recharged at a mark-up from the Services Company. The 31 December 2018 Renaissance Capital Group balance is non-interest
bearing and payable on damand.

24 Loans payable

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Subordinated foan ) ] 10400 10,400 10,400 10,400
~ Total loans payahle , _ , 10,400 10,400 10,400 10,400

The subardinated Ioan is due to Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited (the holding company of the Company) and interest is
payable semi-annually. On 28 Decembaer 2018 the loan agreement was amended to increase the interest rate on the loan from
0.25% to 2.5%. At the same time, the maturity date was extended to 2025.

The loan is stated at its carrying value, which is considered to approximate its fair value. The loan is repayable immediately on
agreement of both the Company and the immediate holding company, Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited.
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25 Income taxes

Income tax expense

a) Analysis of charge in the year end
Tax charged in the statement of comprehensive income

{in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
2018 2017

The charge/(credit) for taxation comprises

Current tax

United Kingdom corporation tax on profits for the year . (184) -

Total currenttax (184 -

Deferved tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (40) -

Total deferred tax . . {40) -

Income tax charge/{credit) reported in statement of comprehensive. income (238) T e

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year end

(in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December
2018 2017

(Loss)/Profit on ardinary activities before tax } - (2127) 2,185
(Loss)/Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax (404) 423
Effects of

Disallowed expenses und non-laxable income 210 386
Utilization of tax losses previously derecognized (40) -
Movement in unrecognised deferrad tax - (819)
Total (credit¥expense for the year end

(234) -

Deferred tax

Differences between IFRS and the statutery taxation regulations in force give rise to temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and fabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. The tax effect of the movements in these
temporary differences is detailed below and is recorded at the applicable rate of tax.

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017

Deferred tax asset

Opening balance - -

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - 819

Utilisation of tax losses ] , ) o - ~ (819)

Closing batance o ' : -

The Finance Act (No. 2) 2015 reduced the corporation tax rate in the United Kingdom to 18% on 1 April 2017, and to 18%
on 1 April 2020. The Finance Act 2016 further reduces the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020.

The deferred tax asset, comprising deductible temporary differences (US$971,000 gross) and tex losses (US$4,250,000
gross), has not been recognised on the balance sheet at 31 December 2018 due to uncertainty over future profits against
which the losses can be utilized. Accordingly, in the absence of a recognition of a deferred tax asset, there is no impact on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 of the future reductions in the UK corporation tax rate.
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Tax legisiation

Based upon the Directors’ understanding of the tax regulations, the Directors’ believe its interpretation of the relevant tax
legislation is sustainable. The Directors’ believe that the Group has accrued all applicable taxes.

26 Share Capital

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
) .~ Group | Company Group Company
Share Capitat ' ’
47,000,000 ordinary shares US$1 each (2017: 47,000,000) 47,000 47,000 47,000 47,000
Total share capital (authorised, calied up and fully pald) | 47000 47,000 47,000 47,000

27 Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company’s trading activities expose it to a variety of fmancial risks that include the effects of changes in equily security
prices, foreign cumency exchange rates, credit risks and liquidity. The Company’s Directors have delegated to the Audit & Risk
Committee, the responsibility for sefling the risk management policies applied by the Company.

The policies are implemented by the Risk Department that reviews all the trading activiies to enable prompt identification of
financial risks so that appropriate actions may be taken. The Renaissance Capital Group's Treasury Department sets out specific
guidelinas to manage foreign exchange risk and the use of financial instruments to manage these.

The table below represents the breakdown of the Group's financial instruments by classes:

Group
(in thousands of USD) At 31 Dacember 2018
. At fair value At amortised cost
Yotal Teading = Balances with ‘Repo’ Other
Portfolio  counterparties  and other financial
&centrat  financing assets
clearing house
Assets
Cash and cash equivatents 5683 - - - 5,683
Financial assets at fair value hetd for trading 8,211 8211 - - &
Securities purchased under agreements to resell - . . - -
Recaivables 13,346 - 13,346 : -
Loans receivable 20,222 - . - 20,222
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 4 4 - - -
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies 8,016 - - - 8,016
Interest receivable . 698 - - - 698
Total financial assets o 56,180 8,215 13346 - 34619
Liabilities
Cash overdrafis 183 - - - 183
Payables 3,725 - 3,725 - -
Loans payable 10,400 - - - 10,400
_Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companles 3,921 - - - 3.921
Total financial liabilities 18,229 N 3728 - 18,508 ‘
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{in thousands of USD) At 31 Decomber 2017
At talr value At amortised cost -
Total Trading Balanceswith ‘Repo’and Other
Portfolio  counterparties other financiat
8centra)  financing assets
clearing house
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,753 - - - 18,753
Financial assets at fair vatue held for trading 8,258 8,258 . - -
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1,217 - - 1,217 -
Receivables 27,159 - 27,159 - B
Loans receivable 17,050 - - 17,050
Financial assets available-for-sale 4 4 - - -
Amounts due from Renaissance Capltal Group companies 5,336 - - - 5,336
interest receivable 31 - - Ky -
" Total financiat assets 77,808 8,262 27,159 1.248 41!1 39
Liabilities ’
Financial liabiities at fair value held for trading - - - - -
Payables 21,004 - 21,004 - -
Loans payable 10,400 - - - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 5,814 - - - 5814
Total financial liabiiities 37,218 - 21,004 - 18,244
Company
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018
At fair value At amortised cost
Total  Vrading  Balanceswith  ‘Repo’ Other’
Portfollo  counterparties  and other financial
& central  financing assets
cfearing house
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5127 - - - 5,127
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 8,211 8,211 - - -
Securities purchased under agreemsnts to resell - - - - -
Receivables 13,346 - 13,348 - B
Loans receivable 19,997 s - - 19,897
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 4 4 - - -
Amounts dus from Renaissance Capital Group companies 8,016 - - - 8,016
Interest receivable 680 - - - 680
“Total financial assets £5,381 8,216 13,346 = 33,820
~Liabliities - ‘ '
Financial fiabilities at fair value held for trading 183 - - - 183
Payables 3.725 - 3,725 - -
Loans payable 10,400 - - - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 3,921 - - - 391
18._229 - ’ A3,725 - 14,504

Total financial liabillties
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(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017
At fafr value At amortised cost
Total Trading  Batances with ‘Rapo’ Other
Portfolio  counterparties  and other financial
&contraj financing assets
. clearing house
Assets
Cash and cash equivatents 17,787 - - - 17,787
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 8,258 8,258 - - -
Securilties purchased under agraements to resell 1,217 - - 1.217 -
Recsivables 26,868 - 26,888 - -
Loans receivable 15,850 - - - 15,850
Financial assets availabte-for-sale 4 4 - - -
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies 5336 - - - 5,336
Interest receivable 26 - - 26 -
Total financial assets 75,348 8,262 26,898 1,243 38,973
Liabilitles - .
Financial abilities at fair value held for trading - - - - -
Payables 20,950 - 20,950 - -
Loans payable 10,400 - - - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 5434 - - - 5434
Total financlal liabilities 36,784 - 20,950 e 15,834
The following tables provide the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets:
Group
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018
Totat Quaoted prices In Significant
active markets unobservable
{Level 1) Inputs (Leve! 3}
Assets
Financial assets at fair vafue held for trading 8,211 8,211 -
Financial assets at fair vatue through profit and loss 4 -, 4
Total financial assets 28,347 8,211 2,028
(in thousands of USD) At 31 Decomber 2017
Total Quoted prices in Significant
active markets unobservable
{Level 1) inputs (Level 3)
Assets
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 8,258 8,256 -
Financial assets available-for-sate 4 - 4
Total financial assets 25,312 8,258 17,054

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss consists solely of shares in SWIFT Serl, a member-owned co-operative.
These are classified as Level 3 as there is no active market and these shares are not traded. As such they have been valued at
cost price and revalued at the closing foreign exchange rate, which is considered to approximate fair value.

37



Renaissance Capital Limited

Company
(In thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018
Yotal Quoted prices In Significant Significant
active markets observable unobsarvable
{Level 1) inputs (Levet 2) Inputs (Levet 3)
Assets
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 8,211 8,211 - -
Loans recsivable 19,897 - - 19,897
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 4 s ‘ s 4
Total financial assets ) ) - 28,212 8,211 - o 20,001
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017
Total Quoted pricesin Significant Significant
active markets observable unocbservable
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Agssets
Financial assets at fair vaiue held for trading 8,258 8,258 - -
Financial assets available-for-sate 4 - - 4
Total financial assets ’ 24,112 8,268 n 16,854

Detailed below are the primary risks associated with the Group's business:

Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Pnice nisk

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk on the lang and short trading positions held by the Company. The fair
value of the long and short trading positions held has been estimated using the quoted market prices. The Company is also
exposed to risk on its debt instruments (US Treasury bonds).

The Company follows the Renaissance Capital Group methodology and employs an equity Value-at-Risk (VaR") model. The
VaR measures the amount of maximum expected loss which will not be exceeded with 89.5% probability as a resuit of normal
but adverse market price movements over a ane day holding period.

VaR outputs are monitored at the Company level. In addition to VaR, the Group runs a number of stress-test scenarios to provide
a snap shot of the risk it might face under extreme circumstances. However, VaR methodology has the following main limitations:
it is based on certain assumptions including the distribution curve of retums, confidence interval, numbers or days for calculating
loss and it uses historical data which has limited ability to predict future losses. Based on the stress-test resuits a risk mitigating
action might be taken by the Audit & Risk Committae to ensure the stress risk is contained within agreed levels.

On a micro level, the Company uses a matrix of risk concentration and scenario limits. Any position (Intra-day or ovemight, singte
or portfolio) exceeding its corresponding limit requires pre-approval in accordance with established paticy.

The Directors are satisfied that the controls it uses to manage the market risk in its trading book are adequate for the limited
trading activities that the Company engages in.

Currency risk
Fareign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuste because of changes in foreign

exchange rate. The Group does not enter into forward exchange contracts for the purpose of hedging anticipated transactions.
The Group utilises Spot Foreign Exchange (‘FX") rates to settie actual transactions refated to financial instruments denominated
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in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group. All gains and losses resulting from the settiement of the financial
instruments are recorded within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Group is subject to cumency risk on the following financial instruments:

Group
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018
— ) — USD GBP —Other - Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4282 633 768 5,683
Financial assats at fair vaiue heid for trading 8,211 - - 8.211
Securities purchased under agreements to resell ' - - - -
Receivables 9.535 - 3811 13,346
Loans recaivable 20,222 < - 20,222
Financial assats at fair value through profit and loss - - 4 q
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies 8,016 - - 8,016
Interest receivable 698 - : 698
Total financial assets ‘ ) ] i . 50,884 . 633 . 4,583 56,180
Liabiliies
Cash overdrafts - - 183 183
Payables 1.447 - 2,278 3,725
Loans payable 10,400 - - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 3,921 - - 3,921
Total financlial liabilities - : ’ 15,768 - - 2481 ’ 18,229
Net position
Net trade rolated assets 20,580 633 2,118 23,332
Net non- trade related assets 14,615 - 4 14,619
Total net position 35,195 633 2122 37,961
(in thousands of USD) At 31 Decomber 2017
' USD GBP Other Total
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 17,116 448 1,189 18,753
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 8,258 < - 8,258
Securities purchased under agreements to reseil 1,217 - - 1,217
Receivables 17.230 - 9.929 27,158
Loans receivable 17,050 - - 17,050
Financial assets available-for-sale - - 4 4
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies 5,336 - - 5,336
Interest receivable L - L. 1
Total financiaf agsets 66,238 448 11122 77,808
Liabliities
Payables 8,925 86 10,803 21,004
Loans payable 10,400 - - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companiss 5,804 - 10 5814
Total financial liabilities ) 26,129 86 11 .(}03 . 37.21_@
Net position ) :
Net trade related assets 33,895 362 126 34,383
Net non- trade related assets ' 6,214 - 6) 6,208
Total net position 40,109 362 120 40,591
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Company

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018

usD GBP Other * Total
Assots
Cash and cash equivatents 3,726 633 768 5,127
Financial assets at fair value ha!d for trading 8,211 - - 8,211
Securities purchased under agreements to resell - - - -
Receivables 9,535 s 3,811 13,346
Loans recelvable 19,997 - s 19,997
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - - 4 4
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies 8,018 z - 8,018
Interest receivable . . o 680 - - 680
Total financial assets ) 50,165 633 4,583 65,381
Liabilifies o
Cash overdrafts - = 183 183
Payables 1,447 - 2,278 3.725
Loans payabte 10,400 - - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Caplial Group companies 3.921 - ] .- 3,921
Total financial liabilities X : 15,768 - 2,461 18,229
Net position ‘ i
Net trade related assets 20,024 633 2,118 22,775
Net non- trade related assets 14,372 : 4 14,376
Total net position . 34,398 633 2,422 37,161
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017 ’

UsD GEP ~Other " Toml
Asseots
Cash and cash equivalents 16,173 448 1,166 17,787
Financial assets at fair vatue held for trading 8,258 - - 8,258
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1217 : - 1,247
Recelvables 16.969 - 9,929 26,898
Loans recelvable 15,850 < - 15,850
Financial assets available-for-sale - - 4 4
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies 5338 - - 5336
Interest receivable o 28 ) - - 26
Total financial assets 63,829 a8 11,089 75,376
Liah[litles : )
Payables 9,871 86 10,993 20,950
Loans payable 10,400 - ) - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies .. 5434 - - 5434
Total financial tiabilities C - 25,708 . 86 10,993 36,784
Net position '
Net trade related assets 32,748 362 102 33.210
Net non- trade related assets 5,378 - 4 5,382
Total net position ’ - . 38,124 362 106 38,592
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The sffect of a 10% strengthening of GBP against the US Dollar at the reporting date on the net assets camied at that date would,
all other variables held constant, have resulted in an increase in post-tax profit for the year and increase net assets by US$89,000
(2017: US$54,000). A 10% weakening in the exchange rate would, on the same basis, have decreased post-tax profit and
decreased net assets by US$73,000 (2017:U5%44,000).

Credit risk v

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with clients or market counterparties outside of inter-group balances.
The Company has implementsd policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before trading commences.
Financial instrument counterparties are subject to pre-approval by the Campliance and Risk functions. Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts are recognised when the uftimate recoverabflity of outstanding balances are deemed uncertain.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Statement of Financial Position and the
net exposure, taking into account the value of collateral held. The maximum exposure is shown gross, through the use of collateral
and net credit exposure is shown after taking into account the value of collateral.

The amounts of gross maximum credit risk exposure represent carrying values of financial assets as of the respective reporting
date excluding cash on hand and equity instruments are set out below. There are no finandal assets that are past due or impaired.

Group

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018

axposure by collaterat
Cash and cash equivalents 5,683 - 5,683
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 8,211 - 8.211
Securities purchased undar agreements to resell - - -
Receivables 13,346 ‘- 13,346
Loans receivabls 20,222 - 20,222
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 8,016 - 8,016
Interest receivable 698 - 698
Total 86,176 - 58,176
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017

expasure by collateral
Cash and cash equivalents 18,753 - 18,753
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 8,258 - 8,258
Securities purchased under agreements to resefl 1,217 1,259 -
Recsivables 27,159 - 27,159
Loans receivable 17,050 - 17,050
Amounts due to Renaissance Capitsl Group companies 5,336 - 5336
Interest receivable 31 - 31
Yota! 77,804 1,259 76,587
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Company
(in thousands of USD) At 31 Decembor 2018
Grass maximum Exposure covered  Ngt exposure

exposure by collateral
Cash and cash equivalénts 5127 - 5127
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 8,211 . 8,214
Securities purchased under agreaments to resefl - - -
Receivables 13,346 - 13,346
Loans receivable 19,897 - 19,997
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 8.016 - 8,016
Interest recaivable 680 - 680
~ Total 55,377 - 55,3717

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017
Gross maximum Exposure covered Ngt exposure

o ; exposure by collateral
" Cash and cash equivalents 17.787 - 17,787
Financial assets at fair vafue heid for trading 8,258 . 8,258
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1,217 1,259 -
Receivables 26,898 - 26,898
Loans receivable 15,850 - 15,850
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies 5,338 - 5,338
Interest receivable 26 - 26
Total 76,372 1259 74,155

The Company’s trading activities involve execution and settiement of equity securities and financial instrument transactions.
Trading in cash equities is considered as the main business activity of the Company. In these transactions, the Company acts
either as a principal or as an agent.

The Company predominantly executes trades on an agency basis, but also trades on a principal basis in equity instruments listed
on the London Stock Exchange, AIM Exchange, Russian Trading System, Moscow Interbank Currency Exchange, Istanbul Stock
Exchange and other European Exchanges. As a membaer of the London Stock Exchange (LSE), the Company continues to take
counterparty risk on trades executed on an agency basis.

Counterparty risk is a combination of “pre-settiement® and/or “setiement” risk, and limits are assigned accordingly. The
Company’s exposure to pre-settlement credit risk assaciated with counterparty non-performance is limited to the net replacement
cost of the contracts in a gain position which are recognised in the Consalidated Financial Statements. Settlement credit risk
occurs when the Company expects delivery of an asset by the counterparty with settlement other than delivery-versus-payment
("DVP"), including cases of pre-delivered sale or prepaid purchase.

The Company manages its credit risk by following an established credit approval process, monitoring credit limits, and insisting
on collateral as it considers necessary. This includes analysis of risk concentrations, in particular those to individual counterparties
and products. As a conssquence, appropriate limits within the Company'’s risk appetite to the maximum exposure per individual
counterparty are set.

The credit approval process is based upon a process of quantitative and qualitative analysis. Reviews by the Compliance and
Risk functions are preconditions to granting approval. Counterparty limits are monitored at both a Company and a Renaissance
Capital Group Level.

Russian local equity transactions are settled either on a DVP basis or a pre-payment or free delivery basis via NSD (the National
Settlement Depository in Russia), Euroclear, or between the accounts of clients’ local custodians. ADRs and GDRs are settled
on a DVP basis via Euroclear, DTC or CREST. Counterparty limits are monitored at both Company and a Renaissance Capital
Group Level.
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The table below provides a breakdown of the Group’s maximum cbunterpady exposure by ratings. The Group applies the intemal
rating system of counterparties’ classification by their credit quality and default probability. The Group uses similar rating classes
as extemal rating agencies. The Group’s counterparty exposures are short-term by nature.

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2097

Group Company Graup Company
Intemal rating ] -
AA+ 8.211 8,211 16,092 16,092
AA 3,940 3,940 13,533 13,533
A+ an 14| 5 5
A 427 az7 10.252 10,252
A- 64 6 352 -
BBB+ . 8,205 8,205 11,210 11,210
88B 731 731 17 1"7
BBB- . . .
BB+ 156 158 m 171
BB- - - 564 -
B+ 498 - 18 18
B . - 230 230
B 33,073 32,830 25,212 23,744
NR “ = - .
Totatl balance shest (tems . _ 56,176 B5,377 77,768 76,372 7

Liquidity and Funding Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meets its payment obligations when they fall due under nonmal and
stressed circumstances. To limit this risk, the Directors of the Company established an overal! liquidity and funding framework.
The liquidity and funding risk management framework is designed to mitigate the potential risk that the Company may be unable
to access adequate financing to service its financial obligations when they become due without material adverse impact on the
business. The key abjectives of the liquidity and funding risk management framework are to support the successfud execution of
business strategies while ensuring ongoing and sufficient liquidity through the business cycle and during periods of financial
distress. Through the Company’s Audit & Risk Committee as well as various risk and control committees at the Renaissance
Capital Group level, the Directors review business performance relative to this framework, monitor the availability of alternative
sources of financing, and oversae the liquidity and currency sensitivity of the Company’s asset and liabiiity pasition.

These committees, afong with the Renaissance Capital Group’s Treasury Department and other control functions, also assist in
evaluating, monitoring and controfling the impact that the Company’s business activities have on its consolidated Statement of
Financial Position, liquidity and capital structure, thereby helping to ensure that its business activities are integratad with the
Company’s liquidity and capital framework.

The Company's primary sources of liquidity are its own cash, repurchase agreements and uncommitted support from
Renaissance Capital Group.

Liquidity is monitored by assessing the surplus liquidity to ensure that the Company can meet all anticipated liabilities arising as
and when they fall due after taking into account projected future expenditure.

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturitles

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at 31 December 2018 and 2017
based on contractual undiscounted repayment cbligations. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were
to be given immediately. ’
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Group
{in thousands of USD) At 31 Decembaer 2018
Call mo?uhs 3to12 1to§ Overs spe'::‘l’ﬁad Total
orless months years years maturity
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,683 - - - - - 5,683
Financla) assets at fair value held for trading - 48 - 8,163 - - 8.211
Securities purchased under agreement to rassli - - - - - - -
Receivables - 5.319 - - - 8,027 13,346
Loans receivable 19,997 . 225 . - - 20222
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - - - - - 4 4
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies - 8,008 8 - - - 8,016
Interest recelvable 680 - 18 - . . .698
Total financlal assets 26,360 13,375 251 8,163 - 8,031 65,180
Liabilitles ’ '
Cash overdrafts 183 - - - - - 183
Payables - 3,725 - - - - 3,725
Loans payable - - - - 10,400 - 10.400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companias - 3.921 - - - - 3921
Total financiat liabilities 183 7,646 - - 10400 - 18,229
Net total position 26,177 6728 251 8,183 (10,400 8,031  37.950
" Cumulative * 26177 31,8056 32,156 40,319 29,919 37,960 37,950
(in thousands of USD) At 31 Decembar 2017
Cal mosths 3to12 165 Overs spo':ioﬁod
orless months years years maturfty Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,753 - - - - - 18,753
Financial assets at fair value held for trading - 47 - 821 - - 8,268
Securities purchased under agreement to resell - 1,217 - - - - 1,217
Recaivables - 16,888 261 - - 10,010 27,159
Loans recefvable 15,850 - 1,200 - - - 17050
Financial assets available-for-sate - - - - - 4 4
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies - 4,978 358 - - - 5,336
Interest receivable 26 - 6 - - - 32
Total financial assets 34,629 23,130 1,825 ‘ 8,211 - 10,014 77,809
Liabllitles T
Financial liabilities at fair value held for trading : - - - - - -
Payablas - 20,046 58 - - - 21,004
Loans payabls - - - - 10,400 - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies - 4,373 1,441 - - - 5814
Total financial liabilities - 252319 1,489 - 10,400 - 37218
Net total pasition 34,629  (2,189) 328 8,211  (10,400) 10,014 40,691
Cumutative 34,629 32,441 '92,767 40,978 30,678 40,592 40,591
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Company
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018
3 3to12 18 Overs No
Cafl months months years years  specified Total
or less maturity
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5127 - - - - - 5127
Financial assets at fair value hald for trading - 48 - 8,163 " - 8,211
Securities purchased under agreement to resell - - - - - - -
Receivables <~ 5,319 - - - 8.027 13.346
Loans receivable 19,997 - - - - - 19897
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - - - - ° 4 4
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies - 8,008 8 - - - 8,016
Interest receivable 8o - - - - - 680
Total financial assets 25,804 13,375 8 8,163 - 8,031 65,381
Liabliities ‘
Cash overdrafts 183 - - - - - 183
Payables - 3,725 - - . - 3725
Loans payable - - - - 10,400 - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaigsance Capital Group companies - 3.921 - - - - 3,921
_Total financial liablfities 183 7,646 - - 10,400 - 18,229
Nat total position 25,821 5728 8 8,163 (10,400) 8031 37,452
" Cumulative 25,621 31,349 31,367 39,620 28,120 37,162 37,152
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017
3 3012 1to§ OverB No
Call months months years years specified Total
or less maturity
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,787 - - - - - 17,787
Flnancial assets at fair value held for trading - 47 - 8211 - - 8,258
Sscurities purchased under agreement to resell - 1,217 - - - - 1,217
Receivabtes . 16,888 - - - 10,010 26,898
Loans receivable 15,850 - - - ) - 15850
Financial assets available-for-sale - - - . - 4 4
Amounts due from Renaissance Capital Group companies - 4,978 358 - - - 5,336
interest recelvabla 2 - - - - - 2
Total financlal assets 33,663 23,130 358 8211 - 10,014 76,376
Liablfitles
Payabtes - 20,950 - s - - 20850
Loans payable - - - - 10,400 - 10,400
Amounts due to Renaissance Capital Group companies - 4,373 1,081 - - - 5434
Total financial ilabliities o - 26323 1,061 - 10,400 - 36,784
_Net total position 33,363 (2,193) (703) 8,211 (10,400) 10,014 38,692
3,683 31470 30,767 38978 28,578 39,592

Cumulative

38,591
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Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Group
(in thousands of USD) At 31 Decamber 2018
1Jan CashFlows Changes arising Forelgn Changes  Other 31 Dac
2018 from obtaining / exchange in fair 2018
losing controfcf move values
subsidiaries .
Liabilitles
Loans payable 10,400 - . - - - - 10400
Total 10400 - e - . - 10400
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017
1Jan CashFlows Changesarising Foreign Changes  Other 31 Bec
2017 fromaobtaining/  exchange In fair 2017
losing controlof movement  values
subsidiaries
Liabilities
Loans payabls , 10400 - - - - 10,400
Total 10,400 - - - - - 10,400
Company
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2018
t1Jan CashFlows Changes arising Foraelgn Changes Other 31 Dec
2018 from obluining / exchange in fair 2018
fosing controlof  movement values
subsidiaries
Liabllitles
Loans payahte 10,400 - - - - - 10400
Yotal » 10,400 - - - - - 10,400
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017
1Jan CashFlows Changesarising Foreign Changes  Other 31 Dec
2017 fromobtaining/  exchange intalr 2017
tosing controlof movement  values
subsidiaries
Liabilities '
Loans payable 10,400 - - - - - 10,400
Total 10,400 - - . - - 10,400

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate or failed intemal processes, human behaviour and systems or from
extemal events. The Company undertakes a rigorous program of monitoring and assessing operational risk incidents. The
Company cannot expact to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a contro! framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and
reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment procedures, including the use of internal audit. The Company has
monthly KRI reporting in place in order to assess and manage operational risk.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that the Company maintains sufficient liquidity and
regutatory capital. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in fight of changes in economic
conditions and the regulatory environment. Regulatory capital comprises equity (share capital and reserves plus/minus retained
earnings) plus subordinated debt. There are daily Pillar YCRD IV capital ratio calculations to ensure that capital exceeds the
regutatory capital requirements. The key Total Capital Ratio at 31 December 2018 was 69% versus a regulatary requirement of
14.56%.
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Regulatory Capital - o ’

The Company is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) in the UK and is subject to capital adequacy
rules applicable to investment fins. Consistant with others in the industry the Company manages capital on the basis of
regulatory capitat in accoedance with Pillar | and Pillar Il. The Company maintains adequate excess capital to ensure that any
significant movements in volumes or market values do not impact the Company's compliance with regutatory requirements.

Compliance with FCA regulatory requirements was maintained throughout the year. The Company has an Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Pracess (commonly known as the ICAAP), which it uses to manage capital. This ICAAP covers the
Company and takes info account the risk profile and future plans of the business. Under this process the Company is satisfied
that there is either sufficient capital to absorb potential losses or that there are mitigating controls in place to prevent the risks
occurring.

Where significant business Initiatives are planned, the effects on the risk profile of the Company and therefore its capital
requirement are considered as part of the business plan.

During the year RCDL held a license to conduct financial services from the Dubai Financial Services Authority (‘DFSA®). RCDL
was is in compliance with the minimum capital adequacy requirement of the DFSA Prudential Rulebooks at all times it held this
license. On November 29 2018 the license was withdrawn by the DFSA on the request of RCDL.

28 Related party transactions

Parties are generally considered to be related if one party has the ability to contro! the other party, is under common contro!, or
can exercise significant influence or joint control over the other party in making financial and operational decisions. In considering
each possible related party relationship attention is directed to its substance not merely the legal form.

The nature of the refated party relationships for those related parties with whom the Group entered into significant transactions
or had significant balances cutstanding as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 and are set out below.

Balances with related parties

At 31 December 2018 and 2017 the autstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Group

(in thousands of USD) At 3t December 2018
Parent Entities under
comman cantrol

Assefs
Receivables - 4,139
Loans receivable 225 20,153
Other assets 26 8,688
Total assets 261 32,980
Liabfiltles
Payabies - 1,230
Loans payable 10,400 -
Other fiabilities - 3,921
Tota! liabilitles , ' 10,400 . 5,151
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(in thousands of usD) At 31 December 2017

Parent Entitles under
common control

Assets

Receivablas - 1,504

Loans receivable 1,200 15,850

Other assets o 8 5,359

Total assets o , 1,208 22,803

Liablfities '

Payables - 18,358

Loans payable 10,400 -

Other liabilities . 5814
 Total Nabllities _ - ' 10,400 X

Balances with parent represents balances with Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited.

Balances with entities under common contro! consisfs of balances with Renaiseance Securities (Cyprus) Limited (net asset of
US$31,645,000), RenCap Securities, Inc (net asset of US$143,000), LLC Renaissance Broker (net asset of US$11,000),
Renaissance Capital Services Limited (net liability of US$3,921,000), and LLC Renaissance Capital — Financial Consutitant (net
liability of US$50,000).

Company
{Iin theusands of USD) At 31 Nacemhar 2018
Parent Entitles under Subsldlary
common control
Assets
Receivables - 4,139 -
Loans receivable - 20,153 -
Other assets 8 8,668 -
Investments in subsidiaries E - 688
Total assets L T 8 © 7 32880 688
Liabfiities ’ ' '
Payables - 1.230 -
Loans payable 10,400 - -
Other liabilities v - 3,021 =
Total Hiabilittes 10,400 5,151 .
(in thousands of USD) At 31 December 2017
Parent Entitles under Subsidiary
common control
Assets
Raceivablss - 1,333 -
Loans receivable - 15,860 -
Other assets 3 5,359 -
Investments in subsidiaries ] -, - 1,388
Total assets 3 22,542 1,388
Liabifities ' ‘
Payabtes - 18,300 5
Loans payable 10,400 . - -
Other [liabilities . 5434 -
Total liabliitles ‘ _ 10400 23,734 5
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Batances with parent represents balances with Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited. ‘

Balances with entities under common control consists of balances with Renaissance Securities (Cyprus) Limited (net asset of
US$31,645,000), RenCap. Securities, Inc (net asset of US$143,000), LLC Renaissance Broker (net asset of US$11,000),
Renatissance Capital Services Limited (net (iability of US$3,921,000), and LLC Renaissance Capital - Finandial Consuttant (net
liability of US$50,000).

Batances with subsidiaries consists of balances with Renaissance Capital Dubai Limited (net asset of 1S$380,000) and
Renaissance Capital Menkul Degerler A.S. (net asset of US$308,000).

Unless otherwise stated elsewhere in the financial statements, all intercompany balances are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.
Transactions with reiated parties

The income and expense items with refated parties for the years ended 31 Decembsr 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as
follows:

Group
{in thousends of USD) For the year ended 31 December 2018
Parent Entities under
commaon control
Net trading income - 722
Fee and commission income - 22,764
Net interest income (14) 806
Management fees ' - (26,434)
(in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December 2017
Parent Entitles under
common control
Net trading income ' - (1,545)
Fee and commission income - 21,647
Nat intarest incoms 8 712
Management fees - (19,125)

Transactions with parent represents transactions with Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited.

Transactions with entities under common control consists of transactions with Renaissance Securities (Cyprus) Limited (net
income of US$24,036,000), RenCap Securities Inc. (et income of US$204,000), RenCap Securities (Pty) Ltd (net income of
US$143,000), Renaissance Advisory Services Limited (net income of US$81,000), Renaissance Capital Services Limited (net
expense of US$26,440,000), Depp Services Limited (net expense of US$16,000), and LLC Renaissance Capital — Financial
Consultant (net expense of US$50,000).

Campany
(in thousands of USD) For the year ended 31 December 2018
Parent Entities under Subsidiaries
common control
Net trading income - 722 -
Fee and commission income - 22,472 (100)
tmpaiment loss - - (1.200)
Net interest income (26) 806 -
Management fees ] - (26,434) -
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(in thousands of USD) ' ' For the year ended 31 December 2017
Parent Entities under Subsidiaries
) common control
Net trading income - (1,545) -
Fee and commission income . 20,936 (101)
Impairment loss : - - (1,742)
Net interest income (22) 712 -

Management fees - . (19,125) -
Transactions with parent represents transactions with Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited.

Transactions with entites under common control consists of transactions with Renaissance Securities (Cyprus) Limited (net
income of US$24,036,000), RenCap Securities Inc. (net income of US$204,000), RenCap Securities (Pty) Ltd (net income of
US$143,000), Renaissance Advisory Services Limited (net income of US$81,000), Renaissance Capital Services Limited (net
expense of US$26,440,000), Depp Services Limited (net expense of US$16,000), and LLC Renaissance Capital - Financial
Consultant (net expense of US$50,000).

Transactions with subsidiaries consists of transactions vﬁth Renaissance Capital Dubai Limited (net expense of US$1,280,000)
and Renaissance Capital Menkul Degerler A.S. (net expense of US$10,000).

29 Financial commitments and contingencies

Operating lease commitments — company as lessee

The Services Company has entered into commercial leases on its premises. The Company remunerates the Services Company
for the cost of these leases through the management fee.

Cumulative future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as foilows:

(in thousands of USD) At 31 December
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
Within one year 912 812 1,168 999
Between one and five years ] ) 7 1742 1,742 3122 2,870
Total operating lease commitments ] 2,654 2,654 4288 3,869

Capital commitments
At 31 December 2018, the Group had no capital commitments (2017: US$NIL).

Legal claims

in the process of liquidating the Company’s unconsolidated subsidiary, Tasfiye Hafinde Renaissance Capital Ticari Damgmantfik
Hizmetleri Anonim Sirketi (previously known as Renaissance Capital Menkul Degerler A.S.), the Company, upon the request of
the Turkish Capital Markets Board, issued letters of undertaking stating that the financial information of Renaissance Capital
Menkul-Degerler A.S. was correct and not misleading and that in the event of any claims against Renaissance Capital Menkul
"DegerlerA S. from its clients, the Company would satisfy such claims ]omtly with Renalssance Capltal Menkul Degerler A.S. The

stating that Renaissance Financial Holdmgs Limited shall pay t6 the Company eny -smounts paid out under the letters of
undertaking.

30 Events occurring subsequent to the reporting date

There were no events occurring subsequent to the reporting date requiring disclosure in these Flnéncial Statements.

31 Controlling party and parent company

The Group’s ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party at the year end is Onexim Holdings Limited (Cyprus). The sole

beneficiary of this undertaking is Mikhail Prokhorov. The Company’s immediate parent company, Renaissance Financial Holdings
Limited, is the largest group preparing consofidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS.



